



Report of the Technical Committee Meeting on Allocation Criteria

Nairobi, Kenya 16-18 February 2011

IOTC-2011-SS4-R[E]

The designations employed and the presentation of material in this publication do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the Indian Ocean Tuna Commission or the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries.

MEMBERS OF THE INDIAN OCEAN TUNA COMMISSION

AS OF 18^{TH} MARCH 2010

AUSTRALIA

BELIZE

CHINA

Comoros

ERITREA

EUROPEAN UNION

FRANCE

GUINEA

INDIA

INDONESIA

IRAN, ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF

JAPAN

KENYA

KOREA, REPUBLIC OF

MADAGASCAR

MALAYSIA

MAURITIUS

OMAN, SULTANATE OF

PAKISTAN

PHILIPPINES

SEYCHELLES

SIERRA LEONE

SRI LANKA

SUDAN

TANZANIA

THAILAND

UNITED KINGDOM

VANUATU

COOPERATING NON-CONTRACTING PARTIES

MALDIVES

SENEGAL

SOUTH AFRICA

URUGUAY

DISTRIBUTION:

Participants in the Session, Members of the Commission Other interested Nations and International Organizations

FAO Fisheries Department

FAO Regional Fishery Officers

BIBLIOGRAPHIC ENTRY

IOTC. Report of the Technical Committee Meeting on Allocation Criteria. Nairobi, Kenya, 16-18 February 2011.

IOTC-2011-SS4-R[E], 23 pp

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	4
I. OPENING OF THE SESSION	5
II. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA	5
III. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON ALLOCATION CRITERIA	5
A. Review of allocation criteria systems in other tuna RFMOs	
B. Criteria for evolving quota system for Indian Ocean tuna resources	
IV. PROPOSALS FOR A QUOTA ALLOCATION CRITERIA SYSTEM IN IOTC	6
A. Proposal A	6
B. Proposal B	6
C. Proposal C	
D. Proposal D	
E. Proposal E	7
V. GENERAL DISCUSSION AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES	7
VI. ADOPTION OF THE REPORT	9
APPENDIX I LIST OF PARTICIPANTS	I
APPENDIX II OPENING ADDRESS BY HONORABLE AMASON JEFFAH KINGI, MINIS	STER FOR FISHERIES
DEVELOPMENT OF THE GOVERNMENT OF KENYA	IX
APPENDIX III AGENDA OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING ON ALLOCAT	TION CRITERIAXI
APPENDIX IV LIST OF DOCUMENTS	XII
APPENDIX V STATEMENTS OF THE REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS AND THE UNITED K	INGDOM WITH
REGARDS TO THE PROPOSED QUOTA ALLOCATION TO THE UNITED KINGDOM ON	
ARCHIPELAGO	XIII
APPENDIX VI BASIC GUIDING PRINCIPLES AGREED BY LIKE-MINDED COASTAL	STATESXIV

I. Opening of the Session

- The Indian Ocean Tuna Commission (IOTC) Technical Committee on Allocation Criteria was held in Nairobi, Kenya, from 16 to 18 February 2011. Delegates from 21 Members of the Commission, 1 Cooperating non-Contracting Party and 4 Observers attended the Session. The list of participants is attached as Appendix I.
- 2. On behalf of the Government of Kenya, the Honorable Amason Jeffah Kingi, Minister for Fisheries Development of the government of Kenya welcomed the participants to Nairobi and declared the meeting open (Appendix II). The Technical Committee agreed that the Chairperson of IOTC, Mr. Rondolph Payet, chair the meeting.

II. Adoption of the Agenda

- 3. The Technical Committee adopted the Agenda as presented in Appendix III to this report, with the addition of a presentation to be given by the Delegate from India under Agenda item 3. The documents presented to the Committee are listed in Appendix IV.
- 4. It was recalled that this Technical Committee had been called by the Commission in Resolution 10/01 adopted in March 2010 in Busan, Korea, with the objective to discuss and recommend an allocation quota system, or any other relevant measures, for the management of tuna and tune-like resources in the Indian Ocean.
- 5. Sri Lanka presented the conclusions of a Consultation on Indian Ocean Fisheries and Tuna, held in Colombo, 7-12 February 2011, under the auspices of the Indian Ocean Marine Affairs Cooperation (IOMAC), the relevant text will be made available to the Secretariat for transmission to participants.

III. Background information on allocation criteria

A. Review of allocation criteria systems in other tuna RFMOs.

- 6. The Secretariat presented a review of the allocation criteria systems developed in the four other tuna RFMOs (IOTC-2011-SS4-03), *i.e.* the Commission for the Conservation of Southern Bluefin Tuna (CCSBT), the International Commission for the Conservation of Atlantic Tunas (ICCAT), the International Tuna Commission (IATTC) and the Western and Central Pacific Fisheries Commission (WCPFC).
- 7. In all cases, a two-step management process has been applied, i) establishment of a limit on fishing activities (*e.g.* catch or fishing capacity limit) and ii) the allocation of fishing opportunities amongst participants themselves.
- 8. Formal allocation procedures are yet to be adopted by any of the tuna RFMOs, however, the text of the Conventions of CCSBT and WCPFC include guidelines for allocation of fishing opportunities, and ICCAT adopted a set of guidelines for the negotiation of quotas at each allocation cycle. The IATTC does not allocate quotas, but adopts a Total Allowable Catch (TAC) and a closure date when the TAC is expected to be reached is determined by the Secretariat based on catch reports.
- 9. The comparison reveals that although the approaches take into account the differences between the oceans, there is also similarity in the criteria taken into account.

B. Criteria for evolving quota system for Indian Ocean tuna resources

10. The delegate from India briefly introduced his views from the perspective of a developing coastal state. He stated that while considering the historical rights of distant water fishing nations, coastal states' right for development had to be adequately addressed. In addition he mentioned that neighbourhood rights (e.g. area of the Exclusive Economic Zone (EEZ), length of coastline, area of the continental shelf,

coastal fisher population, etc.), sovereign rights of the coastal states as well as socioeconomic criteria needed to be considered.

IV. Proposals for a quota allocation criteria system in IOTC

11. The Technical Committee reviewed the four proposals presented before it, with the addition of a fifth proposal introduced by the Republic of Korea during the meeting.

A. Proposal A

12. Indonesia introduced its proposal (IOTC-2011-SS4-PropA) by highlighting the urgent need to develop a quota allocation system that will ensure the sustainable utilization of resources of tuna and tuna-like species in the Indian Ocean. Sustainable utilization would be key to ensuring food security for coastal states in the region. The proposal is based on six criteria to be taken into account when allocating quotas and aimed to respect the aspirations of all CPCs: *i)* geographic area, *ii)* history of tuna fisheries, *iii)* historical catch (1999-2009), *iv)* fleets and fishing gears, *v)* Socio-economic context, and *vi)* environmental concerns. The Indonesian proposal did not include any weighting factors to be applied and is to be considered as guidelines for a negotiation process.

B. Proposal B

- 13. Seychelles introduced a proposal (IOTC-2011-SS4-PropB) based on a hybrid system of attributing all historical catches in the EEZs of Indian Ocean coastal states to those coastal states, and historical catches by eligible flag states fishing on the high seas to those flag states. Seychelles explained that this hybrid system takes into consideration the aspirations of coastal states as well as their sovereign rights on the resources within their EEZs, and historical rights and investment efforts of distant water fishing nations. Once the baseline catch is established, correction factors are applied to account for lack of compliance, membership status and status of financial contributions for each potential participant. A utilization plan would be required from the participants. From the out-set, allocation can be transferred for each allocation period. After the initial fifteen years, a decision will be made on whether trade will be permitted.
- 14. Seychelles indicated that the example accompanying the proposal included data from only the purseseine and longline fleets for illustrative purposes only, and stressed that any future allocation system would include artisanal catch data, such as those from the gillnet and pole-and-line fisheries. These, and other fisheries, were not included as the catch-and-effort data required for this procedure are not available for these fisheries in a spatially disaggregated form at present. The proposal makes provisions for newcomers through a percentage set-aside yet to be discussed.
- 15. Furthermore, Seychelles indicated that the thirty years reference period used for historical catches was only for illustrative purpose and that a more suitable period was open for discussion.
- 16. Following the presentation of the proposal, Mauritius and the United Kingdom requested the inclusion of the statements listed in Appendix V.

C. Proposal C

- 17. The European Union (EU) introduced its proposal (IOTC-2011-SS4-PropC), which sets a baseline for allocation based on historical catches by flag state on a reference period of ten years that would better reflect the reality of the fishery.
- 18. At the same time the EU presented the provisions of its proposal related to the establishment of a set-aside, as a percentage of a TAC, which will be allocated amongst developing states and territories in order to meet their legitimate aspirations.

- 19. This set-aside, and its allocation amongst the developing states and territories should be based on concrete criteria such as the fleet development plans as well as other criteria to be decided by the Commission, which should take into account the different aspects of the developing states and territories status.
- 20. The EU proposal aims to recognize the rights and aspirations of both coastal states, and distant water fishing nations that have historically fished and invested in the Indian Ocean. The proposal outlines several main principles to be followed in developing an allocation system, as well as a series of correction factors, mainly based on compliance record/status, membership status and delay in payment of contributions. Positive correction factors will also be taken into account, *i.e.* positive compliance status, actions taken to address the situation of its vessels listed as IUU, support and implementation of scientific research.
- 21. The respective weight on this negative/positive correction factors would have to be discussed and agreed upon; provisions on voluntary transfers of quota, as well as reporting/payback/monitoring of implementation are also included in the proposal.

D. Proposal D

22. The I.R. of Iran introduced a proposal (IOTC-2011-SS4-PropD) based on historical catches during the last decade by flag states as a baseline. The proposal considers five factors and a weighting scheme based on: *i*) socio-economic aspects of tuna fisheries (30%), *ii*) implementation of responsible fishery practices (25%), *iii*) being an Indian Ocean coastal state (15%), *iv*) being an IOTC Member (15%), *v*) comply and cooperate with IOTC resolutions (15%). Iran stressed the need for a working group to further develop the implementation of a quota allocation system in a period of time.

E. Proposal E

23. Korea introduced its proposal (IOTC-2011-SS4-PropE), which emphasized the need to have a reference period adapted to the different CPCs. In the case of Korea, whose catches declined after the mid-70s, the proposed reference period would start in 1960. Such a historical pattern of Korean catch has been driven in particular by the effective exploitation strategy over the oceans, shifting from the Indian Ocean to the Pacific Ocean for the sake of reducing the fishing pressure on the stocks concerned, and due to Somali piracy problems in recent years. In addition Korea proposed to consider and adopt separate conservation and management measures for longline and purse-seine fleets as implemented in other RFMOs.

V. General discussion and guiding principles

- 24. It was recognized that the process of establishing allocation criteria is complex and unlikely to be completed in the short time available for this meeting. Nevertheless, it was also recognized that progressing on the basis of common ground in the positions expressed at the meeting, including an agreement on basic principles that could guide further developments of an approach to allocation, was of high importance.
- 25. The Technical Committee also recognized that there are advantages to a mechanistic approach including transparency, in which allocations are calculated on the basis of a formula that incorporates the basic principles enunciated below, as opposed to a list of criteria that would require extensive negotiations at each allocation cycle.
- 26. A quota allocation system should be structured around guiding principles (e.g. sustainable fisheries, equitable distribution of the benefits, etc.); the allocation criteria (e.g. catch history, socio-economic status, geographical location, etc.); and indicators that quantify each of the allocation criteria (e.g. catch by area or catch by flag, population size, human development indicators, size of the EEZ in the Indian Ocean, etc.). A formula that combines all these elements would be used to derive a baseline allocation.

- 27. This baseline would be adjusted according to defined correction factors (*e.g.* membership status, compliance status, *etc.*) in order to obtain a final allocation for each eligible CPC.
- 28. Rules of implementation could be defined to regulate the manner in which the allocation is placed into effect by each CPC (e.g. transfer (lease of quota), submission of a utilization plan, any additional monitoring requirements to ensure correct reporting of compliance with the allocation system).
- 29. The following is a non-exhaustive list of the elements of a quota allocation system that were discussed and received support. The allocation system should include principle such as:
 - a. contribute to the sustainable utilization of the resource,
 - b. allocate fair and equitable fishing opportunities to all participants,
 - c. recognize the rights of both coastal states and distant water fishing nations,
 - d. take into account the aspirations of coastal states, including to develop further their fishing opportunities,

and criteria such as:

- e. socio-economic factors, such as dependency of coastal state economies on tuna and tuna-like fisheries, and investments made in tuna sector,
- f. the compliance record/status,
- g. provide incentives for compliance with IOTC conservation and management measures
- 30. In addition, a group of coastal states presented a statement of their collective views on a list of elements that would be desirable in the formulation of an allocation system. This statement is presented in Appendix VI.
- 31. Some CPCs, including coastal states IOTC Members, indicated that some of the elements included in the coastal states statement would be acceptable. However, they expressed their clear disagreement on others such as the catch by area element.
- 32. The Technical Committee agreed that, while it would be desirable to have an agreed allocation procedure for 2012, the complexity of the issue might preclude such an agreement being reached. Nevertheless, and recognizing that the overriding goal is to adopt a conservation measure that would ensure the sustainability of the resources involved, the Meeting noted that, if necessary and on the basis of scientific advice, other management measures will be available to the Commission to achieve that goal, while discussions on a quota allocation system continue.
- 33. The Technical Committee acknowledged the constructive nature of the new elements presented during the debate. To continue with the development of an allocation mechanism incorporating these elements, it was agreed that further inter-sessional work is required, including convening another Technical Meeting before the IOTC Session in 2012. Parties are encouraged to conduct inter-sessional consultations with the goal of working towards a revised proposal that could be supported by all Parties. These further developments should be accompanied by examples that would facilitate the understanding of the consequences of the different formulations to all participants in the allocation process.
- 34. Noting that historical catch data is likely to be an important component of the baseline calculation for the allocation system, the Technical Committee agreed that the Secretariat prepares, for the next meeting, a document on the availability, completeness and quality of data for all fleets in IOTC database.
- 35. The Technical Committee also recognized that the mandate it received from Resolution 10/01 includes consideration of alternative management measures. However, it noted that it was not in a position to discuss alternative measures with the information available. These measures would have more appropriately to be discussed during the Session of the Commission on the basis of scientific advice. A request was made to the Secretariat to provide information on alternative conservation and management measures implemented in other tuna RFMOs.
- 36. Maldives offered to host the next meeting of the Technical Committee in January 2012.

VI. Adoption of the report

37. The report of the Technical Committee meeting on Allocation Criteria was adopted on the 18th February 2011.

APPENDIX I LIST OF PARTICIPANTS

MEMBERS/MEMBRES

AUSTRALIA - AUSTRALIE

Ms. Claire VAN DER GEEST Department of Agriculture

Fisheries and Forestry, Australian Government

International Fisheries

Sustainable Resources Management Division

GPO Box 85

Canberra ACT 2601 Phone: + 61 2 6272 5725 Fax: + 61 2 6272 5089

Email: vandergeest@daff.gov.au

Ms. Anna WILLOCK

Director, International Fisheries Australian Government Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry

GPO Box 858 Canberra ACT 2601 Tel: +61-2-6272 5561 Fax: +61 2 6272 5089

Email: anna.willock@daff.gov.au

BELIZE - BELICE

CHINA - CHINE

COMOROS - COMORES

M. Mikidar HOUMADI Directeur générale

Direction de la peche, Comoros

Moroni

Tel: + 269 7731630

E-mail: mikidar.houmadi@yahoo.fr

M. Ali YOUSSOUF Directeur Adjoint Peche

Direction Generale Des Resources Halieutiques

41 Hamramba Moroni

Tel: + 269 7750013 Fax: + 269 7750013

E-mail: yousmed69@yahoo.fr

ERITREA - ÉRYTHRÉE

EUROPEAN UNION

Mr. Roberto CESARI Deputy Head of Unit

International affairs, law of the sea and regional

fisheries organisations European Commission

Directorate-General for Maritime Affairs and

Fisheries

J-99 02/71, 1049 Brussels

BELGIUM

Tel: + 32 2 2994276 Fax: Fax: + 32 3 3955700

Email: roberto.cesari@ec.europa.eu

Mr. Orlando FACHADA

Principal Administrator - Desk Officer (International

Fisheries)

International Affairs, Law of the Sea and Regional

Fisheries Organizations

Directorate-General for Maritime Affairs and

Fisheries

Rue Joseph II Bruxelles, Belgique Tel: +32 2 299 0857

Fax: +32 2 2955700

Email: orlando.fachada@ec.europa.eu

Ms. Mercedes ALONSO

Subdirectora General de Acuerdos Organizaciones

Regionales de Pesca

Direction General de Recursos Pesqueros y

Acuicultura

Ministerio de Medio Ambiente Y Medio Rural Y Marino

Velazquez 144 28006 Madrid Tel: +91 347 6040 Fax: +91 347 6042

SR. Ramon DE LA FIGUERA

Email: malonsof@marm.es

Subdirectora General de Acuerdos y ORPS Jefe De

Servicio Madrid 28009

SPAIN

Tel: +34 913475940

E-mail: rdelafiguera@morm.es

Mr. Michel GOUJON

Directeur

Organisation des Producteurs de Thon Congelés et

Surgelés ORTHONGEL

11 bis, rue des Sardiniers

29900 Concarneau

Phone: +33 (0) 2 98971957 Fax: +33 (0) 2 98508032 Email: orthongel@orthongel.fr

Mr. David GUYOMARD

Scientifc Studies Project Manager

Reunion Island Regional Committee for Sea

Fisheries and Agriculture 47 rue Evariste de Parny B.P 295-97827 Le Port cedex Reunion Island France Tel: +262 02 62422375

Fax: +262 02 62422405

Email: dguyomard.crpm@wanadoo.fr

Mr. Jean-Luc HALL

Adjoint, Direction de la Mer-Sud Océan Indien

P.O.B 11

Rue de la Compagnie Saint Denis 97400

FRANCE

Tel: +0692888588

E-mail: jean-luc.hall@developpement-

durable.gouv.fr

Mr. Julio MORON Director Gerente

Organización de Productores Asociados de Grandes

Atuneros Congeladores (0.P.A.G.A.C)

Ayala, 54-20. A 28001 Madrid, SPAIN

Tel: +34 91 431 4857 Fax: +91 576 12 22 Email: opagac@arrakis.es

Mr. Anertz MUNIATEGI

ANABAC (Spanish Purse Seiners Association)

P.O.B 48370 Txibitxiaga Berneo SPAIN

Tel: +34 946882806 Fax: + 34 946885017 E-mail: anabac@anabac.org

FRANCE

M. Thierry CLOT

Chef du Service Pêche des Terres Australes et

Antarctiques Françaises (TAAF) 1 rue Gabriel De-jean

St. Pierre 97410 FRANCE (Reunion) Tel: +262 262967828 Fax: + 262692967755 Fax: thierry.clot@taaf.fr

M. Jonathan LEMEUNIER

Chargé de mission - Affaires Internationales Direction des pêches maritimes et de l'aquaculture Ministère de l'agriculture et de la pêche

3 place de Fontenoy, 75007 Paris

Tel: +33 (0) 1 49554390 Fax: +33 (0) 1 49558200

Email: jonathan.lemeunier@agriculture.gouv.fr

GUINEA - GUINÉE

INDIA - INDE

Dr. K. VIJAYAKUMARAN

Director General

Fishery Survey of India, Mumbai 400 001

India

Tel: +91 22 22617101 Fax: +91 22 22702270 E-mail: vijayettan@yahoo.com

INDONESIA - INDONÉSIE

Agus Apun BUDHIMAN

Director of Fisheries Resources

Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries Directorate General of Capture Fisheries

Jl.Medan Merdeka Timur No.16, Jakarta Pusat 10110

INDONESIA

Tel/Fax: +6221 3453008

E-mail: budhiman@indosat.net.id / budhiman2004@yahoo.com

Dr. Ali SUMAN

Researcher

Research Institute for Marine Fisheries (RIMF) Agency for Marine and Fisheries Research and

Development (AMFRAD)

jln Muara Baru Ujung, Jakarta 14440

INDONESIA

Tel/Fax:+(021)6602044

E-mail: alisuman_62@yahoo.com /alis_@indo.net.id

Dr WUDIANTO

Senior Reseacher

Research Center for Fisheries Management and

Conservation

Jl. Pasir Putih Ancol Timur, Jakarta Utara

INDONESIA Tel: 62-21-64711940 Fax: 62-21-6402640

E-mail: wudianto prpt@indo.net.id

IRAN (ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF) - IRAN (REPUBLIQUE ISLAMIQUE D') - IRAN

Mr. Reza Abasspour NADERI

Head of Omman Sex and Persian Gulf Fishing Group

Iran Fisheries Organization

No.236, Fatemi Ave., 2nd Floor, Iran Fisheries

organization (Shilat) , Tehran , I.R.Iran

IRAN (Islamic Republic of) Tel: +9821-66941373

E-mail: r_naderimail@yahoo.com

Mr. Reza SHAHIFAR

Director General of Conservation and Rehabilitation

of Marine Fish Resources Iran Fisheries Organization

No.236, Fatemi Ave. 2nd Floor, Iran Fisheries organization (Shilat), Tehran, I.R. Iran

IRAN (Islamic Republic of)
Phone: +9891 23278012

Fax: +9821-66941673 Email: r.shahifar@gmail.com

JAPAN - JAPON

Mr. Yasushi MARUYAMA

Senior Staff

Fisheries Agency, Government of Japan

International Affairs Division

1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8907

JAPAN

Tel: +81-3-3502-0571

E-mail: yasushi maruyama@nm.maff.go.jp

Ms. Miwako TAKASE

Assistant Director

Far Seas Fisheries Division

Fisheries Agency, Government of Japan

1-2-1 Kasumigaseki Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8907 JAPAN Tel: +81-3-6744-2364

Fax: +81-3-3591-5824

E-mail: miwako takase@nm.maff.go.jp

KENYA

Mrs. Nancy GITONGA

Regional Advisory Committee Coordinator

RAC Secretariat, SP-SFIF Project Museum Hill, Westlands Road P.O.B 30786 00100, Nairobi

KENYA

Tel: +254 20 3674 000 Fax: +254 20 3674 341

E-mail: nancy.gitonga@au.ibar.org /

nanisgitonga@yahoo.com

Dr. Edward KIMANI

Marine and Coastal Fisheries Research Coordinator

KMFRI P.O.B 81651 English Point Mombassa 80100 KENYA

KENIA

Tel: 254 0722670037

E-mail: ekimani@kmfri.co.ke

Mr. Godfrey V. MONOR

Director of Fisheries Fisheries Department

Ministry of Fisheries Development

Museum Hill PO Box 58187 Nairobi 00200

Tel: +254 20 3742320 Fax: +254 20 3743699 Email: monorgy@gmail.com

Email: monorgvægman.com

NICHOLAS M NTHEKETHA Coast and Marine Regional Director

Ministry of Fisheries

P.O B. 90423 Mombassa 80-100

KENYA

Phone: +254719667290/+254733685366

E-mail: mwanzanick@yahoo.com

Mr. Patrick. M ODONGO

Senior Public Relations Officer

Ministry of Fisheries Development of Kenya

Maji House

P.O.B 58187-00200

Nairobi KENYA

Tel: +254 202716103 E-mail: p2008@yahoo.com Mr. Abeid OSHAAN General Manager Fish Processor

Wanainchi Marine Products (K) Ltd

81841-80100 Mombasa

KENYA

Tel:+ 254-722-410 237

E-mail: aoshaan@wanainchimarine.com

Dr. Renison RUWA

Deputy Director

Kenya Marine and Fisheries Research Institute

Silos, Engloish Point

P.O.B 81651 Mombassa 80100

Tel: +254 02 02353903 Fax: +254 02 02353226 E-mail: kruwa@kmfri.co.ke

KOREA

Mr. Yun Suk CHOI

Assistant Manager

Dongwon Industries Co. Ltd

275 Yangjae-dong, Seocho-gu, Seoul

REPUBLIC OF KOREA

Tel: +82-2-589-3091

Fax: +82-2-589-4397

E-mail: yoonthug@dongwon.com

Republic of Korea Phone: +82-2-589-3091

E-mail: yoonthug@dongwon.com

Ph.D. Zang Geun KIM

Senior Scientist

Fisheries Resources Management Division

National Fisheries Research & Development Institute 152-1, Haeanro, Gijang-eup, Gijang-gun Busan 619-

705

REPUBLIC OF KOREA

Tel: +82-51-720-2310

Fax: +82-51-720-2277

E-mail:zgkim@nfrdi.go.kr

Mr. In Keun PARK

General Manager

International Affairs Dept.1

Korea Overseas Fisheries Association

6th.fl. Samho Center Bldg, "A"

275-1, Yangjae-Dong, SeoCho-Ku, Seoul

REPUBLIC OF KOREA Tel: +82-2-589-1612 Fax: +82-2-589-1630-1

Fax: +82-2-589-1630-1 E-mail: parkik@kosfa.org

Mr. Jeongseok PARK

Assistant Director

International Fisheries Organization Division,

Ministry for Food, Agriculture, Forestry and

Fisheries

88 Gwanmun-ro Gwacheon-si, Gyeonggi-do 427-719

REPUBLIC OF KOREA Tel: +82-2-500-2417

Fax: 82-2-503 9174

Email: icdmomaf@chol.com; jspark3985@paran.com

MADAGASCAR

Mr. Diary, Mirindra RAHOMBANJANAHARY Scientifique

Unité Statistique Thonière d'Antsiranana (USTA)

Direction Régionale de la Pêche et des Ressources

Halieutiques, Atsiranana 201

MADAGASCAR Tel: +261 330505329

E-mail: diarmirindra@yahoo.fr

Mr Andriamaharo NY Aina TANTELY Chief of Service of Marine Fisheries

Ministry of Fisheries

Lot IVI 78 Antanety Nord Ambohimanarina

Antananarivo 101 MADAGASCAR

Tel: +261 340529185

E-mail: tantelyaina02@gmail.com

MALAYSIA - MALAISIE

Mr. Gulamsarwar bin JAN MOHAMMAD

Director of Licencing & Resource Management

Division

Department of Fisheries

Ministry of Agriculture Agro based Industry of

Malaysia

Precint 4, 62628 Putrajava

MALAYSIA Tel: + 03-88704406

Fax: +03-88891233

E-mail: gulamsarwar@dof.gov.my

MAURITIUS - MAURICE

Mr. Devanand NORUNGEE

Divisional Scientific Officer

Ministry of Fisheries and Rodrigues

John Kennedy St.

Port Louis

MAURITIUS

Tel: +230 2110604

Fax:+230 208 1929

E-mail: dnorungee@mail.gov.mu

Mr. Leelawant UJOODHA

Acting Principal Assistant Secretary

Ministry of Fisheries and Rodrigues

John Kennedy St.

Port Louis

MAURITIUS

Tel: +230 2112455

Fax:+230 2113407

E-mail: lpillaynarrainen@mail.gov.mu

OMAN - OMAN

Dr. Ahmed Mohammed AL MAZROUAI

Director of Fisheries Development

Ministry of Fisheries Wealth

Muscat

PO Box 374. Postal Code: 324

Tel: +968 24688282

Email: ahmed483@omantel.net.om / ahmed.mazroui@mofw.gov.om

PAKISTAN - PAKISTAN

Mr. Shaukat HUSSAIN

Director General

Marine Fisheries Department, Ministry of Livestock

& Dairy Development,

Fish Harbour, West Wharf, Karachi 74000

PAKISTAN

Tel:+92-21-99214890-4

Fax: +92-21-99214895

E-mail: director mfd@yahoo.com

PHILIPPINES

SEYCHELLES

Roy CLARISSE

Deputy Managing Director

Seychelles Fishing Authority

Fishing Port, Victoria, Mahe

Box 449

SEYCHELLES

Tel: +248 670300

Fax: +248 224508

Email: rclarisse@sfa.sc / royc@sfa.sc

Mr. Vincent LUCAS

Manager- Research and Development Division

Sevchelles Fishing Authority

Fishing Port, Victoria, Mahe

P.O. Box 449,

SEYCHELLES

Tel: +248 512323 / 670300

Fax: +248 224508

E-mail: vlucas@sfa.sc

Mr. Rondolph PAYET

Chairperson of IOTC

Regional Executive Secretary

Regional Management Unit, c/o KMFRI

SWIOFP South West Indian Ocean Fisheries

Project (World Bank)

P.O.Box 86151-80100 **English Road**

Mombasa

KENYA

Tel: + 254 208023924

Fax: +254 412001133

Email: rpayet@gmail.com

Mr. Jan ROBINSON

Research Manager

Seychelles Fishing Authority

P.O. Box 449 Fishing Port

Victoria

SEYCHELLES

Tel: +248 670338

Fax: 284 224508

Email: jrobinson@sfa.sc

SIERRA LEONE

SRI LANKA

Mr. Roshan FERNANDO Executive Director/CEO

Tropic Fisheries

Tess Group of Companies Thammitta Road, Negombo

SRI-LANKA

Tel: +94-777-301996 Fax: +94-312233348

E-mail: roshan@tropicfish.lk / roshan f@slnet.lk

Dr. Dan Malika GUNASEKERA

Attorney-at-Law (Sri-Lanka), LLM cum lande

(Utrecht),

PhD cum lande (Hamburg) 541/2, D.P. Wijesinghe Mawatha Jayanadhapura, Pelawattha

Battaramulla SRI-LANKA Tel: +94 777577179

E-mail: malikagunasekera@hotmail.com

Dr. Hiran JAYEWARDENE

Chairman

National Aquatic Resources Research &

Development Agency, Crow Island, Colombo 15,

SRI-LANKA

Tel: +94 112521881/0777361088

Fax: +94 112521881

E-mail:

iomacsecretariat@gmail.com/chairman@havr.ac.lk

Mr. INDRA RANASINGHE

Director General (Technical)

Ministry of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources

Development

New Secreteriat Maligawatta, Colombo 10, Sri

Lanka SRI-LANKA

Tel: +94 11-2329666, Mobile: 071-8724161

Fax: +94 11-4610708 E-mail: iranapiu@yahoo.com

Mr. Prabhash SUBASINGHE

Managing Director

Gloab Sea Foods (Pvt) Ltd

No.65/3, D S Fonseka Road, Colombo 05,

SRI-LANKA

Tel: +94-11-2598831 Fax: +94-11 2551091

E-mail: prabhash @amaseuro.com

Mr. Parakrama Rupananda Kulasekara

WEERASINGHE General Manager

AmAsEuro Holdings (PVT) LTD. Global Sea Foods (Pvt) Ltd.,

No.65/3, D S Fonseka Road, Colombo 05, Sri Lanka

SRI-LANKA

Tel: +94-11-2598831 Fax: +94-11-2597842

E-mail: parakrama@amaseuro.com

SUDAN - SOUDAN

Dr. Abdalla G.EL EL NAIEM

Fisheries Consultant

Director of Fishery Research Center

Khartoum, SUDAN

Tel: +249 918567259/ +249 123077075 E-mail: abdallaelnaiem@ymail.com

TANZANIA

Mr. Hosea, Gonza MBILINYI

Director

Fisheries Development Division

Ministry Of Livestock and Fisheries Development

P. O.B 2462, Dar Es Salaam, United Republic of TANZANIA Tel: +255-22-2860470/1 Fax: +255-22-2860472

E-mail: hoseagonza@yahoo.com

Mr. G.F. NANYARO

Director General

Tanzania Deep Sea Fishing Authority

P.O.B 56, Zanzibar TANZANIA

Tel: +255 24 2234547/+255 784 423307

Fax: +255 24 2234548 E-mail: gfnanyaro@yahoo.com

THAILAND - THAÏLANDE

Mr. Pirochana SAIKLIANG

Director, Deep Sea Fishery Technology Research and

Development Institute
Department of Fisheries

7th Plodprasop Building, Kasetklang, Chatuchak,

Bangkok 10900 THAILAND Tel: +66 6835467848 Fax: +66 25620543

E-mail: pirochas@hotmail.com

E-mail: pirocnas@notmail.com

UNITED KINGDOM - ROYAUME-UNI

Dr. Christopher MEES Development Director

MRAG

18 Queen Street London W1J 5PN

UNITED KINGDOM Tel: +44 2072557783 Fax: +44 207499 5388 E-mail: c.mees@mrag.co.uk

Mr. John PEARCE Senior Consultant MRAG Ltd

18 Queen Street, London W1J 5PN

UNITED KINGDOM Tel: +44 20 7255 7780 Fax: +44 20 7499 5388 E-mail: j.pearce@mrag.co.uk

VANUATU

COOPERATING NON-CONTRACTING PARTIES PARTIES COOPERANTES NON-CONTRACTANTES

MALDIVES - MALDIVES

Dr. Hussain Rasheed HASSAN

Minister of State for Fisheries and Agriculture Ministry of Fisheries and Agriculture

Velaanaage Building, 7th Floor

Ameeru Ahmed Magu

Male' 20 -05 MALDIVES Tel: +960 - 3330096 Fax: +960 3326558

E-mail: hussain.hassan@fishagri.gov.mv

Dr. M. Shiham ADAM Director General Marine Research Centre

Ministry of Fisheries and Agriculture

H. White Waves Malé, 20025 MALDIVES Tel: +(960) 331-3681

Fax: +(960) 332 2509

E-mail: msadam@mrc.gov.mv

Mr . Hussain SINAN Senior Research Officer Fisheries Management Agency Ministry of Fisheries and Agriculture Velaanaage Building, 7th Floor

Malé, 20025 MALDIVES Tel: +(960) 3339266 Fax: +(960) 3326558

E-mail: hussain.sinan@fishagri.gov.mv

Mr. Ahmed BUNNYAMIN

President

Maldives Seafood Processors & Exporters

Association

M.Marble 5th Floor, Kanbaa Aisa Rani Hingun,

Male' MALDIVES Tel: +960 7776382 Fax: +960 3320175

E-mail: president@maldivesseafoodassociation.org

Mr. Mohamed WASEEM

Vice President

Maldives Seafood Processors & Exporters

Association

M.Marble 5th Floor, Kanbaa Aisa Rani Hingun,

Male' '
MALDIVES
Tel: +960 7776655
Fax: +960 3320178

E-mail: ensis@dhivenet.net.mv

Mr. Mohamed RASHEED

Maldives Seafood Processors and Exporters

Association

M. Marble 5th Floor, Kambaa

Aisa Rani Higu Male'-20070 MALDIVES Tel: +960 3330982 Fax: +960 3320175

E-mail: rasheed@horizonfisheries.com

SENEGAL - SÉNÉGAL

SOUTH AFRICA - AFRIQUE DU SUD -

URUGUAY

OBSERVERS OBSERVATEURS

MOZAMBIQUE

Mr. Florian GIROUX

Adviser

Monitoring, Control & Surveillance

National Directorate of Fisheries Administration Rua Consiglier Pedroso 347 (3 Andar) - Maputo

MOZAMBIQUE Tel: +258 21.30.28.36

E-mail: giroux.florian@gmail.com

Mr. Domingos GOVE National Director Ministry of Fisheries Fisheries Research Institute Mao Tse Tung Av. No 381. Maputo MOZAMBIQUE

Tel: +258-82-6546483 /+258-82-3118530 E-mail: domingosgove1@hotmail.com Mr. Simeao LOPES Director General

National Fisheries Administration

Ministery of Fisheries

Rua Consiglier Pedroso no. 347, Maputo

MOZAMBIQUE Tel: +258 21358000 Fa: +258 21320335

Email: slopes42@hotmail.com /

slopes@adnap.gov.mz

Ms. Elsa da Gloria PATRIA

Technical

National Fisheries Administration

Ministery of Fisheries

Consaglieri Pedroso, street, nr. 347, Maputo

MOZAMBIQUE Tel: +258 21358000 Fax: +258 21 320335

E-mail: elsapatria@yahoo.com.br

/epatria@adnap.gov.mz

COALITION FOR FAIR FISHERIES ARRANGEMENTS

Ms. Hélène BOURS

Adviser

Coalition for Fair Fisheries Arrangements (CFFA) Route d'Amonines, 15 - 6987 Rendeux, Belgium

Tel: +32 84477177 Fax: +32 477430171

E-mail: bours.helene@scarlet.be / helene.bours@gmail.com

SOUTH WEST INDIAN OCEAN FISHERIES COMMISSION

Mr. Aubrey HARRIS

Secretary

South West Indian Ocean Fisheries

Commission (SWIOFC)

FAO-SFS P.O.B 3730

Samora Machel Street, Tendeseka Park, Harare

ZIMBABWE

Tel: + 263 4253655/7 Email:aubrey.harris@fao.org

WORLD WIDE FUND FOR NATURE FONDS MONDIAL POUR LA NATURE

Dr. Didier FOURGON

Fisheries Programme Officer

WWF-MWIOPO (WWF Madagascar & West Indian

Ocean Programme Office B.P. 738 (101) Antananarivo,

MADAGASCAR

Tel: +261 34 49 888 04/05 Fax: +261 20 22 348 88 E-mail: dfourgon-mg@wwf.mg

Mr. Kwame MFODWO

Law Faculty

Monash University/ WWF

Wellington road Clayton, Melbourne AUSTRALIA Tel: +61 395602254

E-mail: kwame.mfodwo@monash.edu

Dr. Amani NGUSARU Coastal East Africa Initiative WWF Tanzania Programme Office Plot 350, Regent Estate Mikocheni

P.O.B 63117 Dar es Salaam TANZANIA

Tel: +255 22 2700077/1 Fax:+255 22 2775535 E-mail: angusaru@wwftz.org

Ms. Siew Funs SONG

Law Faculty

Monash University/WWF

Sydney 2000 AUSTRALIA Tel: +61 449795650

E-mail: siew.song@monash.edu

INDIAN OCEAN TUNA COMMISSION (IOTC) SECRETARIAT SECRETARIAT DE LA COMMISSION DES THONS DE L'OCEAN INDIEN (CTOI)

Mr. Alejandro ANGANUZZI

Executive Secretary P.O. Box 1011 Victoria, Seychelles Phone: +248 225494 Fax: +248 224364

Email: alejandro.anganuzzi@iotc.org

Dr. David T. Wilson Deputy Secretary P.O. Box 1011 Victoria, Seychelles Phone: +248 225494 Fax: +248 224364

Email: david.wilson@iotc.org

Mr. Julien MILLION Fishery Officer P.O. Box 1011 Victoria, Seychelles Phone: +248 225494 Fax: +248 224364

Email: julien.million@iotc.org

Ms Claudia MARIE Bilingual Secretary P.O. Box 1011 Victoria, Seychelles Phone: +248 225494 Fax: +248 224364

Email: claudia.marie@iotc.org

INTERPRETERS

Sylvia Amisi Ernest J. kongani Maria-Lily Pavlidis Gilbert Manirakiza Chantal Mariotte Joe Keguro Muhindi

With thanks to the support staff from the Ministry for Fisheries Develompent of Kenya

Stephen Ndegwa Peter Nyongesa Carren Oguda Glady's Nyakinyua Stephen Gichimu Patience Mwandido Evans Matongo Henry Kariuki Purity Macharia Lucy Onyancha Joseph Otieno Kennedy Muli

APPENDIX II

OPENING ADDRESS BY HONORABLE AMASON JEFFAH KINGI, MINISTER FOR FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT OF THE GOVERNMENT OF KENYA

The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Fisheries Development, Professor Micheni Ntiba, The Secretary General IOTC, Mr. Alejandro Anganuzzi, Country Delegates, Ladies and Gentlemen

I take this opportunity to welcome all of you to this auspicious occasion of the technical committee meeting on allocation and criteria session of the Indian Ocean Tuna Commission (IOTC). For those of you coming from outside Kenya, I would like to welcome you to this beautiful country and specifically the city of Nairobi. Please feel at home and enjoy the relaxing atmosphere and ensure you have a safari tour to see our wildlife and the countryside.

This meeting was necessitated by the current situation whereby the tuna stocks are thought to be fully exploited or overfished. The working group resolution is supposed to propose to the commission on issues pertaining to exploitation of the tuna stocks. It is my hope that the deliberations here lead the commission into coming up with a strategy for the management of tuna resources to guarantee intergenerational equity.

Distinguished Guests,

The Indian Ocean fishery has had one of the most successful tuna tagging programmes with over 160,000 fish tagged and 10,000 recovered. The wealth of information gathered through this programme should also be utilized to ensure better management of the tuna resources. Tunas are known to be highly migratory and under the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea (UNCLOS) are supposed to be managed regionally. The challenge of effective Monitoring Control and Surveillance (MCS) is always expected and I would call on all countries to improve their flag and port state measures to curb the Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated (IUU) fishing. Harmonization of the regional penalties for the defaulters should also be encouraged to deter illegal fishing activities.

A working data collection system is an important tool for decision making. However, it's known that data collection is a costly exercise and sometimes poses logistical nightmare while undertaking especially the observer problem. As such allocation of resources towards MCS is overlooked by the planners, yet the data from MCS plays an important role in assisting them during decision making. The gathered information assists a lot in development and proper utilization of the fisheries resources, taking into account the Code of Conduct for Responsible Fisheries.

Ladies and Gentlemen,

Historical catches have shown that the exploitation of the tuna stocks in the Indian Ocean hit an all time high during the 2004 to 2006 season from where the catches have now been on a downward trend. History has shown us that without proper management of the fish stocks, the collapse of a fishery is eminent and this is what we are gathered here to prevent.

The collection of tuna data in the region has not been very effective and yet without data, decision making becomes difficult. I would urge all member and co-operating non contracting members of the IOTC to ensure that the data on tuna catches by their fleets are well documented and reported in time so that the Scientific Working Party can generate better estimates for proper stocks management. I would also like to thank the IOTC for setting aside a fund for scientists from developing nations to attend the working party meetings and urge the countries to take advantage of the fund for an increased understanding of the stock status.

Distinguished Guests,

The problem of Somali piracy has been affecting the tuna industry and I urge this meeting to ensure that the matter gets high attention during the Nairobi meeting and eventually at the commissioner's meeting.

As a country, Kenya has undertaken significant steps by creating a ministry specifically responsible for the management and development of fisheries resources, known as the Ministry of Fisheries Development. The ministry has undertaken various initiatives geared towards increasing the contribution of fisheries to the national economy. The Kenya oceans and fisheries policy places high priority to the development of Kenya's marine fisheries mainly due to the reduced production from the inland fisheries. The current marine production stands at 7,000 against the potential of 150,000 that the country is planning to exploit. The policy of my ministry is to enhance the exploitation of the territorial waters and the EEZ through public private partnership.

The country has passed a cabinet memo that aims at setting up a Coast Guard with the role of protecting the waters from illegal activities. An inter-agency Kenya Oceans Fisheries Council has been formed aimed at providing for a comprehensive framework for ocean governance.

Kenya is in the process of finalizing its fleet development plan that will soon be forwarded to the IOTC. The current production from the marine waters has been low but the fisheries policy recently started by the government aims at ensuring utilization of the territorial waters and the EEZ. In line with this, the Government is in the process of setting up a fishing port at Lamu to improve on the current available infrastructure.

It is my hope that fifty years down the line when we walk into Tsukiji market, we shall still have plenty of sachimi from the Indian Ocean. Walking in a supermarket in Madrid, we can still have canned tuna from the Indian Ocean. A visit at Antsiranana will still find the locals roasting tuna along the streets. When one gets to Colombo, the boat making industry targeting tuna will still be employing the boat builders while there will still be cannery workers in Seychelles.

Finally Honorable Delegates, I would like to urge you to address the matter with a sober mind. Those of us with knowledge of the Darwin's Nightmare are aware of how facts can be manipulated to suit partisan interest which I hope will not happen in this Nairobi meeting. Let the selfless hope for the future generations be our guiding principle as we come up with the position to present to the commissioners meeting.

With these brief remarks, it is now my pleasure to declare this Conference officially open.

APPENDIX III AGENDA OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING ON ALLOCATION CRITERIA

- 1. Opening of the Technical Committee
- 2. Adoption of the Agenda
- 3. Background information
 - a. Review of allocation criteria systems in other Tuna RFMOs
 - b. Criteria for developing a quota system for Indian Ocean tuna resources
- 4. Proposals for a quotas allocation criteria system in IOTC
 - a. Proposal A, submitted by Indonesia
 - b. Proposal B, submitted by Seychelles
 - c. Proposal C, submitted by the EU
 - d. Proposal D, submitted by the I.R. of Iran
 - e. Proposal E, submitted by Korea
- 5. Adoption of the report

APPENDIX IV LIST OF DOCUMENTS

Reference / Référence	Title / Titre	
IOTC-2011-SS4-01	[E] Agenda	
	[F] Ordre du Jour	
IOTC-2011-SS4-02	[E] List of documents	
	[F] Liste des documents	
IOTC-2011-SS4-PropA	[E] The criteria to use in allocating quotas amongst CPCs of IOTC. Submitted by Indonesia.	
	[F] Proposition de critères à utiliser pour l'allocation des quotas entre CPCs de la CTOI. <i>Soumis par l'Indonésie</i> .	
IOTC-2011-SS4-PropB	[E] On establishing a quota allocation system for the main targeted species in the iotc area of competence. <i>Submitted by Seychelles</i> .	
	[F] Sur la mise en place d'un système d'allocation de quotas pour les principales espèces cibles dans la zone de compétence de la CTOI. <i>Soumis par les Seychelles</i> .	
IOTC-2011-SS4-PropC	[E] On establishing a quota allocation system for the main targeted species in the iotc area of competence. Submitted by the EU.	
	[F] Sur la mise en place d'un système d'allocation de quotas pour les principales espèces cibles dans la zone de compétence de la CTOI. <i>Soumis par l'UE</i> .	
IOTC-2011-SS4-PropD	[E] On establishing a quota allocation system for the main targeted species in the IOTC area of competence. Submitted by the I.R. of Iran.	
	[F] Sur la mise en place d'un système d'allocation de quotas pour les principales espèces cibles dans la zone de compétence de la CTOI. <i>Soumis par la R.I. d'Iran</i> .	
IOTC-2011-SS4-PropE	[E] Korean proposal on setting historical reference year and other considerations. <i>Submitted by the Republic of Korea</i> .	
	[F] Proposition coréenne sur la définition de l'année de reference historique et autres considerations. Soumis par la République de Corée.	
Information document / Document d'information		
IOTC-2011-SS4-Inf01	[E] A comparison of the four quota allocation proposals submitted to IOTC. Submitted by the United Kingdom.	
	[F] Une comparaison des quatre propositions d'allocation de quotas soumises à la CTOI. Soumis par le Royaume Uni.	

APPENDIX V STATEMENTS OF THE REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS AND THE UNITED KINGDOM

WITH REGARDS TO THE PROPOSED QUOTA ALLOCATION TO THE UNITED KINGDOM ON THE BASIS OF CHAGOS ARCHIPELAGO

Statement of the Republic of Mauritius

- a) Mauritius does not recognize the so-called British Indian Ocean Territory. The Chagos Archipelago was illegally excised from the territory of Mauritius prior to its independence in violation of UN General Assembly resolutions 1514 (XV) of 14 December 1960 and 2066 (XX) of 16 December 1965.
- b) Under both Mauritian law and International law, the Chagos Archipelago including Diego Garcia is under the sovereignty of Mauritius. Mauritius objects to the proposed allocation of a quota to UK on the basis of Chagos Archipelago.
- c) As Chagos Archipelago forms an integral part of the Republic of Mauritius, the calculation of the Baseline Nominal Catch Proportion of the Republic of Mauritius should also include the catch per area in the waters around Chagos Archipelago.

Statement of the United Kingdom

The UK has no doubt about its sovereignty over the British Indian Ocean Territory which was ceded to Britain in 1814 and has been a British dependency ever since.

As the UK Government has reiterated on many occasions, we have undertaken to cede the Territory to Mauritius when it is no longer needed for defense purposes.

It is important that BIOT receives a quota so that it is in place at such a time as the Territory is ceded to Mauritius.

APPENDIX VI BASIC GUIDING PRINCIPLES AGREED BY LIKE-MINDED COASTAL STATES

A group of like-minded coastal States (the Group) attending the IOTC Technical Committee Meeting on Allocation Criteria held in Nairobi, 16-18 February 2011, met outside the plenary during the morning and in the afternoon of 17 February 2011. The Group acknowledged positive aspects of the five proposals (EU, Seychelles, Indonesia, Iran, and Korea) that were presented at the plenary. The coastal States, while recognizing the constructive and substantive efforts made by the five CPCs in putting forward their proposals, noted that it is not possible, to agree at this stage, on a set of allocation criteria that may be used for developing a comprehensive quota system.

The Group consisted of the following coastal States.

		• •
	Auctro	lıa
1.	Austra	па

2. Comoros

3. India

4. Indonesia

5. Iran (Islamic Republic of)

6. Kenya (Republic of)

7. Madagascar (Republic of)

8. Maldives (Republic of)

9. Mauritius

10. Mozambique

11. Oman (Sultanate of)

12. Pakistan

13. Sevchelles

14. Sri Lanka

15. Sudan

16. Tanzania

17. Thailand

The Group discussed and agreed the following as guiding principles that may be used to formulate the allocation criteria. These include:

- 1. For the purposes of allocation, all historical catches taken in EEZ of a coastal state shall be attributed to that coastal state. Historical catches taken on the high seas shall be attributed to the flag State.
- 2. No Coastal States shall be worse off than current position with respect to agreed baselines.
- 3. The allocation process must recognize the development aspiration of the coastal States
- 4. A mechanism should be developed for new DWFNs entrants.
- 5. Effective enforcement against IUU fishing is fundamental to quota allocation.
- 6. Sustainability of the resource should be considered.
- 7. The degree of sustainability of the resource should be considered with respect to by catch.
- 8. The special needs and vulnerabilities of artisanal, dependent coastal communities and Small Island States including their socio-economic and food security issues should be considered.
- 9. Degree of sustainability of fishing methods with respect to by-catch should be taken into account.
- 10. Transferability (Lease) of allocations should be permitted.
- 11. Quota may be utilized anywhere within the IOTC competent area or sub-area with qualification that licenses will be required to fish within another EEZ.

The Group also agreed to propose an interim management measure that may be implemented until a comprehensive quota management system is in place. The management measure will be proposed in the forthcoming Commission Meeting in Colombo.

The like-minded Coastal State greatly appreciated the support provided by the WWF for organizing a preparatory meeting among the coastal States, on 15 February 2011, that provided the basis for these guiding principles.

18 February 2011